
 Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

 Wednesday, March 19, 2025, at  6:00PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon 



Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held April 16, 2025 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS – REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 

Agenda: Wednesday, March 19, 2025 @ 6:00pm 

REGULAR MEETING 
1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call
4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda
5. Public & Guest Comments
6. Executive Session: None

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 
7. Financial and Grant Reports (January) (Pgs. 1-24)
8. Service Performance Reports (January) (Pgs. 25-33)
9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (March) (Pgs. 34-37)
10. NW Rides Brokerage (Pgs. 38-40)
11. General Managers Report (Pgs. 41-42)

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning/Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Management
e. Operations/Vehicle Maintenance

12. Miscellaneous

CONSENT 
13. Motion to Approve the Minutes of February 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting (Pgs. 43-48)
14. Motion to Approve January 2025 Financial Statements
15. Motion to Appoint FY 25-26 Budget Committee Members (Pgs. 49-51)

ACTION ITEMS 
16. Resolution 25-06 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 1 to 

ODOT Section 5339 Grant Agreement Number 34225 (Pgs. 52-61)
17. Appointment to Board of Directors – Position 1 (Expiring June 30, 2025) (Pgs. 62-63)

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
18. Staff Comments
19. Board of Directors Comments
20. Adjournment

UPCOMING EVENTS 

To attend by phone, please dial: +1 (253) 215-8782   Meeting ID: 874 4875 2742 
To attend virtually, please use this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87448752742 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/


1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



TCTD Operations
Statistics & 
Performance
January 2025

25



YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE

46447

4232 4856

56235

4994 5802

IN-COUNTY DEVIATED FIXED ROUTE INTERCITY DIAL-A-RIDE

RAW PASSENGER COUNTS

Jan-25 Jan-24

26



IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE
YTD COMPS

21998

1485

14969

6347

1648 0

25985

2330

15063

8193

2597 2067

RT 1 (TOWN LOOP) RT 2 
(NETARTS/OCEANSIDE)

RT 3 (CANNON BEACH) RT 4 (LINCOLN CITY) RT 6 (PORT LOOP) PC SHUTTLE

Jan-25 Jan-24

27



DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE
YTD COMPS

2094

2762
2854

1948

TILLAMOOK COUNTY PROGRAM

Jan-25 Jan-24

28



PASSENGER CATEGORIES
YTD COMPS

409
1029

268

4506

417801

1663

502

6084

694

RIDE CONNECTION TILLAMOOK BAY 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

NWOTA VISITOR PASS YOUTH FREE AMTRAK

Jan-25 Jan-24

29



TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP
January 2025 & January 2024

6754

6536

475

464

805

698

2024

2025

In-County Inter-City DAR

30



31



32



33



Coordinating Committee In-Person Meeting 
March 14, 2025 | 10:00 am—12:00 pm 

ALL VIRTUAL 
Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259 

Call In: 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259 

Agenda 

10:00- 
10:05a  Introductions Cynda Bruce 

 Zero Emissions Study 
Facility Reviews Tracy Dorsey 

10:05 -
10:10a 

 Consent Calendar (Action Item) 
January Meeting Minutes 
Financial Report   

Cynda Bruce/All 

10:10- 
10:30a 

NWOTA Standing Items 
Emissions/Ridership Tracking 
Website Updates: 

- Swiftly Updates – Individual agency meetings
with Swiftly?

- Branding Updates
- Token Transit

Sarah Lu Heath 

10:30- 
10:40a E-Bike Policy Discussion

 
All 

11:00-
11:10a Bus Stop Project Update Brian Vitulli 

11:10- 
11:20a Annual Plan Update Sarah Lu Heath 

11:20- 
11:35a All 

11:35 – 
11:45a CWRides Collaboration Charlene Peche 

All 

11:45- 
11:50a 

New Business All 

34

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259


11:50a- 
12:00p Member Updates All 

Attachments: 
January Meeting Minutes  
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking 

Meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities.  If 
a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

35



NWOTA Meeting Minutes 
February 14, 2025 

Virtual meeting called to order at 10:02am. 

In attendance:  Deann Garcia and Jamie Law from MAD Collective, Cynda Bruce, Debbie 
Booth-Schmidt, Sarah Lu Heath, Charlen Peche, and Chris Wheatley. 

Standing Items: 

 Website Updates: Deann Garcia and Jamie Law from MAD Collective shared updated brand 
concepts including updating color scheme, patterns, and icons. These updated assets can 
be used by all agencies when creating NWConnector content. MAD will work on next steps 
for implementation and share a plan with NWOTA.  

Swiftly Updates: a test site is available for the website, however not all vehicles are 
transmitting location. BAT and LCT are working with Swiftly to improve data availability. 

The discussion of token transit and online fare sales will resume after the real-time tracking 
issues are solved.  

Consent Calendar:  Minutes were reviewed and a motion to accept was made by Debbie 
Boothe-Schmidt and seconded by Chris Wheatley. The motion passed unanimously. 

Financials were not available for review. 

Ridership numbers were reviewed. It was noted that BAT needs to update their fuel type and Sarah 
Lu Heath will assist with that.  

E-Bike Policy Discussion:      The group reviewed the e-bike policy from Lane County. It was
decided the group would wait for final adoption until March to ensure all five agencies were able to
review, discuss, and approve.

Bus Stop Project:     This item was tabled until March. 

Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study:  Sarah Lu Heath provided a brief update on the study and 
noted the next group check-in.  

OCVA Pilot Proposal: The group discussed OCVA’s comments made at the NWACT meeting on 
February 13. The group agreed that it was an unproductive conversation and NWOTA’s concerns 
were not addressed.  

The group found there are two outstanding questions they would like to discuss with OCVA. 

1) Why is Highway 30 not being considered as there is no service on this corridor and CCR is
more willing to take on a long-term project than SETD.

2) Will there be an opportunity to align schedule to prevent additional customer leakage?

It was also noted that while OCVA made note of SETD’s support for the project provided by Kathy 
Kleczek, she was not employed by SETD at the cited time and never had the authority to provide an 
official SETD position. The SETD board of directors is opposed to the proposed pilot.  

36



Charlene Pech shared her experience with a pilot project in Benton County that is now being taken 
over by ODOT. As they already provide a charter bus experience via The Point on Highway 26, it’s 
unlikely the pilot on that corridor would be taken over.  

Other Business:      None. 

Member Updates:    LCT is working on audits and budgets. SETD continues recruitment efforts for a 
new Executive Director. CCR is working on operations and administrative streamlining. They are 
also reviewing their vanpool numbers after starting the new program. BAT is updating the schedule 
for the Coast to Valley and looking at best practices for managing contractors.  

Meeting was adjourned at 11:45am. 

37



Volunteers

Trips= 409
Miles= 19,237

16 Volunteers

38



Mileage
Reimbursement

Trips= 1387
Miles= 60,172

39



Providers

Trips= 3,744
Miles= 86,309

Clatsop County: AAA Ride Assist, K&M Medivan, Ryans

Transportation, Sunset Empire, Direct Medical, Medix

Columbia County: Columbia Medical, CC Rider, Wapato

Shores, Direct Medical, Ryans Transportation

Tillamook County: TCTD, Quick Cab

Portland: Metro West, Willamette Valley

13 Providers, 124+ Drivers

40



Tillamook County Transportation District 
  “Connecting the community through sustainable transit services” 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-8005 
www.tillamookbus.com 

DATE: March 19, 2025 

TO: TCTD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  

Administration/Coordination 

• On March 11, as part of the Oregon Transit Association, testified to the Oregon Legislature’s
Joint Committee on Transportation on the benefits of the Statewide Transportation
Improvement Fund (STIF) Program and the benefits seen throughout Tillamook County.

• Attended the Sunset Empire TD TAC meetings on February 21 and March 13.
• Attended OTA Legislative Committee meeting on February 21.
• Attended Tillamook County Town Hall with Representative Bonamici and Senator Merkley at

Neah-Kah-Nie High School on February 22.
• Attended PC/Woods Parking Advisory Committee meeting on February 25.
• Attended OTA Board of Directors meeting on March 4.
• NWOTA meeting held on March 14.

Planning & Development 

• Attended ODOT Priority Intercity Bus Network Study meeting on February 26.
• The Zero Emission Vehicle Feasibility Study is continuing. Data collection has been completed

and the consultant team is proceeding with analysis and document development. Project
coordination meetings held on February 27 and March 14.

• The phase 1 Request for Qualifications is nearly complete for the NWOTA Bus Stop Access
Project. Phase 1 tasks include final design and obtaining permits for the three locations
(Pacific City, Hebo, Waldport), and a NEPA analysis of the Hebo location. The District will then
seek responses from three qualified firms and proceed with contracting.

• Met with consultants from Destination Management Advisors on January 24 regarding the
OCVA’s pilot shuttle proposal to operate duplicative service from Beaverton to Tillamook to
Cannon Beach, Seaside, and Astoria. Also met with NWOTA partners regarding this issue.

Grant Funding 

• With FS Bond, attended ODOT Grant Management Training on February 26.

41



P a g e  | 2 

3600 Third St. Ste A, Tillamook OR  97141  (503) 815-8283  Fax (503) 815-2834 
www.tillamookbus.com 

• Submitted two, ODOT STIF-Discretionary grant applications for 1) New fire alarm system for
administration building and vehicle maintenance facility, and 2) Shelters for enhanced bus
stop infrastructure constructed as part of the U.S. 101 upgrade project in Garibaldi. ODOT
recommended approval of both projects to the Public Transportation Advisory Committee
(PTAC). PTAC approved funding for both projects – 100% of ask for the fire alarm system and
$71,997 (out of $80,000) for bus stop infrastructure in Garibaldi.  Oregon Transportation
Commission consideration is scheduled for March 3, 2025. Learned in late February that the
FTA deemed the Fire Alarm application not eligible.

• Submitted Federal Formula (5310 & 5311) grant applications to ODOT on November 20, 2024.
Funding will be used for preventive maintenance, capital vehicle purchases, and operations.
Marie Mills Center, Inc. submitted for 5310 funds through the District as the lead agency.
Their award will be used for preventive maintenance of their fleet. PTAC consideration is
scheduled for April 2025.

• FY 2025-2027 Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) Formula Funding Plan
application was submitted to ODOT on January 16, 2025 to cover the period July 1, 2025
through June 30, 2027. (The Board of Directors approved this Plan at January 2025 meeting.)
On February 10, TCTD received notification from ODOT that its FY 2025-2027 STIF Plan was
reviewed and determined to be complete with no changes. ODOT will recommend it to the
Public Transportation Advisory Committee for approval at their April meeting. Final approval
to be considered by the Oregon Transportation Commission at their May meeting.

Facility/Property Management 

• Drop-down electrical access was installed in Vehicle Maintenance Facility to allow mobile
vehicle lift charging.

• Transit Center exterior / platform cleaning occurs weekly and on an as-needed basis.
• NW Rides Brokerage expansion is progressing.
• Completed several tree trimming projects around Administration Building and Transit Center.

Operations/Vehicle Maintenance 

• Request for Quotes for four new Category B buses issued on January 2, 2025. Vendor
responses were due on January 24, 2025, but delayed due to clarification of Altoona testing
requirements of gas engine Category B vehicles with propane conversion.

• Two new category B buses will enter production once all components are ordered. These
vehicles are long overdue, but progress is being made.

• Two heavy-duty Category B trolley-replica buses are in the procurement process.
• Two Category E1 DAR vans are currently being manufactured. These vehicles are long

overdue.

42



Regular Meeting February 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Wednesday, February 19, 2025 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order:   Board Vice Chair Adler called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Gary Hanenkrat, Director  
Marni Johnston, Treasurer 
Linda Adler, Vice Chair (via Zoom) 
Jonathan Bean, Secretary 

Absent 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Mary Johnson, Board Chair 
Thomas Fiorelli, Director 

TCTD Staff 
Brian Vitulli, General Manager 
Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor 
Jules Deputy, Brokerage Manager 
Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent 
Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk 

Guest  
Arla Miller, ODOT 
David McCall, Citizen 
John Cline, Citizen 

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.

5. Public & Guest Comments: John Cline stated that he knows everyone is talking
about the Dialysis Clinic still not operational and wanted to see if maybe the Board of
Directors could do something. GM Vitulli stated that he has reached out and there is
still uncertainty around when it will open. Director Hanenkrat asked how many patients
we are providing with transportation to travel outside of Tillamook County for
treatments. GM Vitulli stated 11 to 12 patients.

6. Executive Session: None.

43



Regular Meeting February 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

7. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the December 2024 financials
included in the Board packet pages 1-24.

Director Adler asked about item 5247 on page 3 regarding the Propane Fuel,
questioned why the balance is so low. FS Bond responded that the invoice possibly
came in too late for the billing process, but we do have 2 large propane storage tanks
outside.

8. Service Measure Performance Report: OS Reed provided service statistics and
performance measures for the month of December 2024 and are included in the
Board packet pages 25-33.

Director Johnston asked about page 28 regarding the difference between Tillamook
County and Program. OS Reed responded that Tillamook County is a Dial-A-Ride
service that allows passengers to request pick-up and drop-off services by phone. It
can be used for travel to medical appointments, employment, school and shopping.
The Program is NW Rides, Dialysis trips and Veterans program for non-emergency
medical transportation

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Vitulli provided updates on the February
2025 meeting, with details included in the Board packet pages 34-37.

10. NW Rides Brokerage: BM Deputy provided the following updates:
a. Total trips provided in 2024 are 76,557. Volunteers are at 7,794, mileage

reimbursement riders are 17,761 and Providers is 51,002.
b. Miles driven are 1,972,317 in 2024. Volunteer mileage is 341,697, mileage

reimbursement is 466,388 and Providers is 1,164,232.
c. Total trip cost is $4,623,062 in 2024. Volunteers are $226,743, mileage

reimbursement is $341,342 and Providers is $4,054,977.
d. Tillamook Family Counseling Center has moved out of their office and IT is

coming in March to get the lines set up to move in April.

Director Johnston asked if NW Rides is actively seeking volunteers. BM Deputy stated 
yes that they are always looking for volunteers through DHS. 

Director Adler asked if there are volunteers in Tillamook. BM Deputy stated only 
through NW Rides. 

11. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in
Board packet pages 38-39 (see GM Report in packet for details):

a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Development
e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance

44



Regular Meeting February 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

Director Adler asked if there were any updates from the Oregon Coast Visitors 
Association for the North Coast Shuttle service. GM Vitulli provided a summary of 
the pilot shuttle discussion from the February 13th NWACT meeting. David McCall 
added that the discussion with OCVA was not a favorable interaction. NWACT 
Commissioner Betsy Johnson asked OCVA about funding plans to operate the 
service and was told that there would only be private funding. Arla Miller from 
ODOT was asked if OCVA applied for state funding, Arla Miller stated yes but did 
not believe they were awarded funding. 

12. Miscellaneous: GM Vitulli provided that the full-time Customer Service
Representative position for the Transit Center has been posted to the NW Connector
website, the Headlight Hearld, and Tillamook County Pioneer.

CONSENT CALENDAR 

13. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Approve the Minutes of January 15, 2025, Regular
Board Meeting. Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

14. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Approve December Financial Statements.
Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

15. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Approve Ordinance No. 2: Re-establishing and
Amending Ordinance No. 2; Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, Categories, and Rates;
and Establishing an Effective Date. Seconded by Director Bean.

 Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

16. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Approve TCTD FY 2025-26 Budget Calendar.
Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

45



Regular Meeting February 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

17. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Appoint GM Brian Vitulli as FY 2025-26 Budget
Officer. Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

18. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Amend Policy 32: Reasonable Modification.
Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

19. Motion by Director Hanenkrat to Authorize General Manager to Execute Furniture
Quote with National Business Furniture. Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

ACTION ITEMS 

20. Motion by Director Johnston to Approve Resolution 25-03 Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute Amendment Number 4 to ODOT Section 5339 Grant
Agreement No. 34225. Seconded by Director Hanenkrat.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

21. Motion by Director Johnston to Approve Resolution 25-04 Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute Amendment Number 3 to ODOT Section 5311 Grant
Agreement No. 34242. Seconded by Director Bean.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

46



Regular Meeting February 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

22. Motion by Director Bean to Approve Resolution 25-05 Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute Amendment Number 1 to ODOT Section 5311 Grant
Agreement No. 35606. Seconded by Director Johnston.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Bean, Adler, Hanenkrat, and Johnston. 

Director Fiorelli and 
Chair Johnson absent. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

23. Appointment to Board of Directors - Position 1 (Expiring June 30, 2025).

Director Johnston stated that it is wonderful to serve on the Board of Directors.

Director Adler stated that she doesn’t know David McCall very well but does know
James Heffernan as he served on the Board before after he was elected. She
stated that she supports appointing James Heffernan to the vacant position
because he was originally a member.

Director Hanenkrat stated that he thinks James Heffernan will do a good job as he
knows what to expect as he served before.

Director Johnston stated that even though James Heffernan served before, he
caused problems and resigned. She would support the appointment of David
McCall to the vacant position.

Director Hanenkrat and Director Johnston had further discussion and agreed to wait
for all Board members to be present.

Director Bean stated that he would support appointing David McCall to the vacant
position, but agreed to wait until all Board members are present.

24. Staff Comments:

General Manager Vitulli: None

Operations Superintendent Reed: None

Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that the SDAO Annual Conference meeting had
good sessions focused on Cybersecurity.

Brokerage Manager Deputy: None

Admin Assistant Brown: None

47



Regular Meeting February 19, 2025 

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting.  Only text enclosed in quotation 
marks report a speaker’s exact words. 

25. Board of Directors Comments:

Chair Johnson: Absent

Vice Chair Adler: None

Dir. Hanenkrat: None

Dir. Johnston: Stated that she is very cautious about Cybersecurity with the agencies
she works for.

Dir. Bean: None

Dir. Fiorelli: Absent

26. Adjournment: Board Vice Chair adjourned the meeting at 7:15 pm.

These minutes were approved this 19th day of March 2025. 

ATTEST: 

     Mary Johnson, Board Chair      Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

48



49



50



51



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Authorizing the General Manager ) 
to Execute Amendment Number 1 ) 
to ODOT Section 5339 Grant  ) 
Agreement Number 35328 )  RESOLUTION NO. 25-06 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) has received 
a grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) under Section 5339 of 
the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, for expansion vehicle purchase, design, 
shelter, and construction of the Hebo Bus Stop, and Downtown Transit Center 
Renovation; and 

WHEREAS, on August 30, 2022, the District entered into ODOT Grant Agreement 
No. 35328, memorializing a grant in the amount of $508,000; however, for Amendment 
Number 1, this only pertains to the expansion vehicle purchase grant amount of $340,000; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District and ODOT mutually desire to modify Exhibit A to upgrade 
the vehicle category from Class C to Class B with a useful life of ten years or 350,000 
miles and to change the fuel type from propane to diesel; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors wishes to authorize the General 
Manager to execute Amendment Number 1 to upgrade the vehicle category from Class 
C to Class B with a useful life of ten years or 350,000 miles and to change the fuel type 
from propane to diesel. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

that the General Manager is hereby authorized to accept and execute Amendment 
Number 1 to ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35328 in the amount of $340,000 on behalf of 
the Tillamook County Transportation District, to purchase two, expansion Class B trolley 
replica transit vehicles by June 30, 2026.  

52



INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of March 2025. 

ATTEST: 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________ 
Mary Johnson, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

53



54



55



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon 

Agreement No. 35328 

Tillamook County Transportation District, 
by and through its 

By 

(Legally designated representative) 

Name 
----------------

(printed) 

Date 

By 

Name 
----------------

(printed) 

Date 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

(If required in local process) 

By 

Recipient's Legal Counsel 

Date 

Recipient Contact: 

Mike Reed  Brian Vitulli

3600 Third Street, Suite A  3600 Third Street, Suite A

Tillamook, OR 97141-0188 Tillamook, OR 97141-0188

1 (503) 8158283  1 (503) 815-8283

mreed@tillamookbus.com  bvitulli@tillamookbus.com

State Contact: 

Arla Miller 

555 13th Street NE 

Salem, OR 97301-4179 

1 (503) 949-5415 

Arla. MILLER@odot.oregon.gov 

State of Oregon, by and through its 
Department of Transportation 

By 

Suzanne Carlson 

Public Transportation Division Administrator 

Date 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

By Arla Miller 

Date 03/03/2025 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

(For funding over $250,000) 

By 

Assistant Attorney General 

Name ___ N _in_a_R _. _E _n-g_la _n _d _e _r _b�y_e _m_ a_ i _l __ 
(printed) 

Date 11/12/2024 

Signed Agreement Return Address: ODOTPTDReporting@odot.oregon.gov 

Page 3 of 8 56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63


	1 Board Packet Cover 3.19.2025
	2 Agenda 3.19.2025
	REGULAR MEETING
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	CONSENT
	ACTION ITEMS
	16. Resolution 25-06 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment Number 4 to ODOT Section 5339 Grant Agreement Number 34225 (Pgs. 52-61)
	17. Appointment to Board of Directors – Position 1 (Expiring June 30, 2025) (Pgs. 62-63)
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	UPCOMING EVENTS

	1 FINAL Board Packet 3.19.2025
	7 Jan 2025 Financial Reports
	8.1 Performance Report
	Slide 1: TCTD Operations Statistics & Performance January 2025
	Slide 2: YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE
	Slide 3: IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE YTD COMPS
	Slide 4: DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE YTD COMPS
	Slide 5: PASSENGER CATEGORIES YTD COMPS
	Slide 6: TOTAL SERVICES RIDERSHIP January 2025 & January 2024

	8.2 Performance Measures
	9.1 2025.03.14 NWOTA Meeting Agenda
	9.2 2025.02.14 NWOTA Minutes
	10. NW Rides Brokerage
	11 GM Report_March 2025
	13 2.19.2025 Minutes_FINAL
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	Absent
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Brian Vitulli, General Manager
	Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor
	Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent
	Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk
	Guest
	Arla Miller, ODOT
	David McCall, Citizen
	John Cline, Citizen
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.
	5. Public & Guest Comments: John Cline stated that he knows everyone is talking about the Dialysis Clinic still not operational and wanted to see if maybe the Board of Directors could do something. GM Vitulli stated that he has reached out and there i...
	6. Executive Session: None.
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	7. Financial and Grant Report: FS Bond reviewed the December 2024 financials included in the Board packet pages 1-24.
	Director Adler asked about item 5247 on page 3 regarding the Propane Fuel, questioned why the balance is so low. FS Bond responded that the invoice possibly came in too late for the billing process, but we do have 2 large propane storage tanks outside.
	a. Total trips provided in 2024 are 76,557. Volunteers are at 7,794, mileage reimbursement riders are 17,761 and Providers is 51,002.
	b. Miles driven are 1,972,317 in 2024. Volunteer mileage is 341,697, mileage reimbursement is 466,388 and Providers is 1,164,232.
	c. Total trip cost is $4,623,062 in 2024. Volunteers are $226,743, mileage reimbursement is $341,342 and Providers is $4,054,977.
	d. Tillamook Family Counseling Center has moved out of their office and IT is coming in March to get the lines set up to move in April.
	Director Johnston asked if NW Rides is actively seeking volunteers. BM Deputy stated yes that they are always looking for volunteers through DHS.
	Director Adler asked if there are volunteers in Tillamook. BM Deputy stated only through NW Rides.
	11. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates included in Board packet pages 38-39 (see GM Report in packet for details):
	a. Administration/Coordination
	b. Planning Development
	c. Grant Funding
	d. Facility/Property Development
	e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance
	12. Miscellaneous: GM Vitulli provided that the full-time Customer Service Representative position for the Transit Center has been posted to the NW Connector website, the Headlight Hearld, and Tillamook County Pioneer.
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	ACTION ITEMS
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	23. Appointment to Board of Directors - Position 1 (Expiring June 30, 2025).
	Director Johnston stated that it is wonderful to serve on the Board of Directors.
	Director Adler stated that she doesn’t know David McCall very well but does know James Heffernan as he served on the Board before after he was elected. She stated that she supports appointing James Heffernan to the vacant position because he was origi...
	Director Hanenkrat stated that he thinks James Heffernan will do a good job as he knows what to expect as he served before.
	Director Johnston stated that even though James Heffernan served before, he caused problems and resigned. She would support the appointment of David McCall to the vacant position.
	Director Hanenkrat and Director Johnston had further discussion and agreed to wait for all Board members to be present.
	Director Bean stated that he would support appointing David McCall to the vacant position, but agreed to wait until all Board members are present.
	24. Staff Comments:
	General Manager Vitulli: None
	Operations Superintendent Reed: None
	Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that the SDAO Annual Conference meeting had good sessions focused on Cybersecurity.
	Brokerage Manager Deputy: None
	Admin Assistant Brown: None
	25. Board of Directors Comments:
	Chair Johnson: Absent
	Vice Chair Adler: None
	Dir. Hanenkrat: None
	Dir. Johnston: Stated that she is very cautious about Cybersecurity with the agencies she works for.
	Dir. Bean: None
	Dir. Fiorelli: Absent
	26. Adjournment: Board Vice Chair adjourned the meeting at 7:15 pm.
	These minutes were approved this 19th day of March 2025.
	ATTEST:

	15.1 Marlie-Jo Burdick_Redacted
	15.2 Dustin Burdick_Redacted
	15.3 Kathy Jo Pesterfield_Redacted
	16.1 25-06 ODOT Section 5339 Agreement No 35328 Amendment 1
	16.2 25-06 35328 Amendment 1
	17 BOD Application_David McCall_Redacted
	17.1 BOD Application_James Heffernan_Redacted




